
 

 
611 Pennsylvania Ave SE #231 

Washington, DC 20003 

 
June 23, 2023 
 
Ms. Elizabeth M. Cannon, Director 
Ms. Roberta Steele, Regional Attorney 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission  
Seattle Field Office 
909 First Ave., Ste. 400  
Seattle, WA 98104-1061 
 
Investigation Request: Unlawful Racial Discrimination By Nordstrom 
 
Dear Ms. Cannon and Ms. Steele:  
 
America First Legal Foundation (“AFL”) is a national, nonprofit organization working 
to protect the rule of law, due process, and equal protection for all Americans. We 
write pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 1601.6(a), providing that “Any person or organization 
may request the issuance of a Commissioner charge for an inquiry into individual or 
systemic discrimination” to request that the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission open an investigation into Nordstrom, Inc. (the “Company”) for engaging 
in unlawful employment practices in violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2.1 An unlawful employment practice is established when the 
evidence demonstrates that race, color, religion, sex, or national origin was a 
motivating factor for any employment practice. 42 U.S.C. § 2000e-2(m). Here, the 
Company admits and affirms that it knowingly and intentionally uses race, color, sex, 
and/or national origin as a motivating factor in its employment practices.  
 
Nordstrom, Inc. is a publicly traded corporation incorporated under the laws of the 
State of Washington, with its principal executive offices located at 1617 Sixth Avenue, 
Seattle, Washington, 98101.2 It has affirmatively represented to its shareholders, 
investors, and the Securities and Exchange Commission that it is and will continue 
favoring certain individuals because of their race, color, national origin, or sex in its 
employment practices. It further admits to limiting, segregating, or classifying 
employees or applicants for employment and new business in ways that would 
deprive, or tend to deprive, white and/or male individuals of employment, training, 
or promotions because of their race, color, sex, or national origin. For example: 

• The Company’s most recent Form 10-K suggests that it is using numerical 
quotas for hiring, training, and promotion and that the Company has taken 

 
1 Copies of this letter are also addressed to each Member of the Commission and AFL makes the same 
request of them pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 1601.6(a).   
2 Nordstrom, Inc. 4th Q 2022 Form 10-K at 1 (Mar. 10, 2023), https://bit.ly/3WWOFmF. 
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extraordinary steps to ensure these quotas are embedded deeply in its business 
operations.3 For example, to “increase representation of Black and Latinx [sic]4  
individuals in people-manager roles by at least 50% on average” by the end of 
2025, the Company “has operationalized diversity, equity, inclusion and 
belonging through consistent reviews with Erik B. Nordstrom, our Chief 
Executive Officer, and Farrell B. Redwine, our Chief Human Resources 
Officer.” Although the word “Latinx” lacks any fixed or discernable legal 
meaning, and the Company nowhere defines what it means, it appears that 
the Company is referring to persons with a national origin in a Spanish-
speaking nation. Additionally, “Progress toward our diversity, equity, 
inclusion and belonging ambitions [sic] is tracked and reviewed regularly by 
our executive team and Board of Directors.”5 Finally, according to the 
Company’s “Diversity, Inclusion, and Belonging Fact Sheet,” by the end of 
2025, it “will increase representation of Black and Latinx populations in 
people-leadership roles by at least 50%” and through its internship and other 
early-in-career programs, it “will create opportunity for underrepresented 
populations with an aim of 50% representation.”6 

• The Company’s self-reported data, if accurate, suggests that its hiring and 
promotion policies are having, and indeed, are designed to have, a disparate 
impact on white and/or male individuals. For example, women are 
substantially overrepresented in the Company’s “leadership.” Also, the 
Company avers that “People of color,” another term without a fixed or 
discernable legal meaning, are favored for “leadership” positions.7   

• The Company affirmatively favors “Black individuals” in hiring, promotion, 
and training8 and apparently has in place recruiting and hiring preferences for 
individuals based on sexual preference and gender identity.9 

    

 
3 The Company’s illegal conduct also includes hundreds of millions of dollars annually in explicitly 
race-based procurement and purchasing in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 and analogous state laws. See 
Nordstrom Now, Nordstrom Joins Forces with The Folklore Group, Continues Growing Assortment of 
Black-Owned Brands (Feb. 28, 2023), https://bit.ly/3WH1UYd. Such conduct, however, is beyond the 
Commission’s jurisdiction.   
4 The word “Latinx” lacks any fixed or discernable legal meaning, and the Company nowhere defines 
what it means. It appears that the Company is referring to persons with a national origin in a Spanish-
speaking nation.    
5 Form 10-K, supra at 10.  
6 NORDSTROM, INC., Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging Fact Sheet at 2, https://bit.ly/42EeuZX 
 (last visited Jun. 9, 2023) (emphasis added); see also NORDSTROM, INC., Diversity at Nordstrom 
(FAQ), https://bit.ly/3IX8MeG (last visited Jun. 9, 2023); see also NORDSTROM, INC., Diversity 
Inclusion & Belonging, https://bit.ly/3OWbKDW (last visited Jun. 9, 2023). 
7 Id. 
8 Id. 
9 Id. at “We Support Our Employees”.  
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Racial, ethnic, and sex-based “balancing” in hiring, training, compensation, and 
promotion is patently unlawful. See 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e-2(a), (d).10 Therefore, the 
Company’s admissions strongly suggest that it is knowingly and intentionally 
violating 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e-2(a) and (d). If the Company is engaged in such conduct, 
then it is knowingly and intentionally violating federal civil rights laws. If the 
Company is not engaged in such unlawful conduct but merely pretending to do so, 
then it is cynically and intentionally misleading customers, workers, and investors. 
There is no third alternative. 
 
The company’s employment practices, as described herein, are unlawful.11 They are 
also deeply harmful. Discrimination based on immutable characteristics such as race, 
color, national origin, or sex “generates a feeling of inferiority as to their status in the 
community that may affect their hearts and minds in a way unlikely to ever be 
undone.”12 More broadly, the discrimination highlighted in this case necessarily 
foments contention and resentment, it is “odious and destructive.”13 It truly “is a 
sordid business, this divvying us up” by race or sex.14 A Commissioner charge should 
issue here. 
 
Thank you in advance for your cooperation. 
 

Sincerely, 

/s/ Reed D. Rubinstein  
America First Legal Foundation 

 
CC:  The Honorable Charlotte A. Burrows, Chair  

The Honorable Jocelyn Samuels, Vice Chair 
The Honorable Keith E. Sonderling, Commissioner 
The Honorable Andrea R. Lucas, Commissioner 

 
 

 
10 See, e.g., United Steelworkers of Am. v. Weber, 443 U.S. 193, 208 (1979); Johnson v. Transp. Agency, 
480 U.S. 616, 621-641 (1987); see also Bostock v. Clayton Cnty., Georgia, 140 S. Ct. 1731 (2020).   
11 Bob Jones Univ. v. United States, 461 U.S. 574, 593 (1983) (“racial discrimination in education 
violates a most fundamental national public policy, as well as rights of individuals”). 
12 Brown v. Bd. of Education, 347 U.S. 484, 494 (1954). 
13 Texas v. Johnson, 491 U.S. 397, 418 (1989). 
14 League of United Latin Am. Citizens v. Perry, 548 U.S. 399, 511 (2006) (Roberts, C.J., concurring in 
part). 
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